ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 10, 2011
3:05 p.m
VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Wes Kel ler, Chair
Representative Alan Dick, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Bob Ml er
Representative Charisse MIlett
VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Bob Herron
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha

COW TTEE CALENDAR
PRESENTATI ON(S) : CI Tl ZEN REVI EW PANEL
- HEARD
OFFI CE OF CHI LDREN S SERVI CES
- HEARD
ALASKA CHI LDREN S ALLI ANCE
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER
SUSAN HEUER, Chair
Citizen Revi ew Panel
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a PowerPoint, "Alaska's GCitizen
Revi ew Panel " and answer ed questi ons.
CHRI STY LAWON, Acting Director

Central Ofice
Ofice of Children's Services

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- February 10, 2011



Depart nent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during an
update by the G tizen Revi ew Panel.

PAM KARALUNAS, Chapter Coordi nator

Al aska Children's Alliance

Chugi ak, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a PowerPoint, "Alaska Children's
Al liance Update on CACs 2011."

BRI AN MESSI NG, Program Manager

Sout heast Al aska Fam |y Eval uation Child Advocacy Center

Al aska Children's Alliance

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
Power Poi nt presentation by the Al aska Children's Al liance.

JESSI CA LAWWASTER, Program Manager

Haven House, Kenai Peninsula Al aska Children's Alliance

Hormer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
Power Poi nt presentation by the Alaska Children's Alliance.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:05:35 PM

CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Commttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3:05 p. m
Representatives Keller, Dick, Mllett, and MIller were present

at the call to order. Representative Seaton arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

PRESENTATI ON(S): Citizen Revi ew Panel

3: 05: 58 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the first order of business woul d be
a presentation by the Ctizen Review Panel.

3:09:18 PM
SUSAN HEUER, Chair, Citizen Review Panel, introduced the
Power Point entitled "Alaska's Citizen Review Panel." [Included

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- February 10, 2011



in nmenbers' packets] She stated that the Citizen Review Panel
(CRP) was currently conprised of seven volunteer nenbers, slide
1, "Citizen Review Panel: Wo." In response to Chair Keller,
she explained that the CRP nenbers would travel to a larger hub
community, and split into groups of two for visitations to
smal l er surrounding conmmunities. These visitations would focus
on discussions with staff fromthe Ofice of Children's Services
(OCS) and its community partners, as shown on slide 2, "Wat,"
and then report on the findings. She stated that they did not
visit with any of the cases.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK, referring to slide 3, "Were," asked about
the communities in the Yukon- Kuskokwi m regi on.

M5. HEUER replied that the CRP had prioritized its visitations
for communities with the biggest crises.

3:13: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE D CK encour aged visitations to interior
At habascan vil | ages.

3:14: 14 PM
M5. HEUER addressed slide 5, "Way" and slide 6, "Benefits of

CRP," and reported that there was a CRP in every state for
"grassroots feedback fromthe conmmunities and the famlies about

how well|l services are being delivered." She stated "W're the
eyes and ears of both the public and for you and OCS and we take
this very seriously." She explained that CRP had the unique

function of identifying and advocating for the ancillary
services that OCS could not request, offering as an exanple, the
Western Region in Bethel. She outlined the presentation, slide
7, "Overview of presentation,” to include the prior year's
recommendati ons, a response from OCS on the CRP annual report,
and reviews and reconmmendations fromthis year.

3:16: 01 PM

M5. HEUER discussed slide 8, slide 9, and slide 10 "CRP
recommendations from our work |ast year, Recommendations to

OCS." These recommendations included a need to acknow edge and
address the discrepancy between rural, bush and urban child
protection; a concern for OCS front I|ine workers to have

adequate support staff to allow a focus on social work, not
paperwork; and a suggestion that the training for new OCS
workers be nodified to better reflect the on-the-ground reality

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 3- February 10, 2011



of the job. She noved on to slide 11, slide 12, slide 13, and
slide 14, "CRP recomendations from our work |ast year,
Recommendations to the Legislature.” These included a need to
acknowl edge and address the discrepancy between rural, bush and
urban child protection; a need to clarify which agency assuned
fiscal responsibility for transportation of children to a child
advocacy center (CAC); a request for capital budget funding for
housing and facility work for OCS and its workers; and a request
that Al aska standardize the resources available to all state
agenci es, including internet and housi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK asked about the tine sensitivity for the
transportation of children to a CAC.

M5. HEUER reported that it was necessary w thin hours.
3:18:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify which was necessary in a
few hours, financial responsibility or response.

V. HEUER explained the delays caused by discussion of
responsi bility during requests for transportation.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that the response for
transportation was the same in rural and urban areas.

M5. HEUER offered her belief that there was "some kind of a
glitch in the statutes that nakes that discussion possible, and
so that needs to be resolved so kids just get on the next plane
and go."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked who to contact if legislators were
made aware of a two to three week delay for transportation and
eval uati on.

M5. HEUER suggested that this was a question for M. Lawton.
3:21:57 PM

M5. HEUER, explaining that a lack of housing in rural areas was
a major inpedinment to OCS staff recruitnent and retention, asked

that a housi ng budget be created.

CHAIR KELLER asked if there had been any conparison for this as
an i ssue in urban areas.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- February 10, 2011



M5. HEUER replied that this was primarily a retention factor for
rural areas.

3:24: 04 PM

M5. HEUER, referring to slide 14, stated that the resources
available to all state agencies should be standardized. She
opi ned that OCS had fewer resources to utilize for retention.

V. HEUER, addressing slide 15, "OCS Response to CRP
Recommendations,” and referred to the alleged discrepancy for
child protective services in urban and rural areas. She stated

the OCS response to be: "Safety is safety, regardless of
| ocati on. They have the sane expectations; the resources have
been allocated to acconplish this."” She expressed encouragenent

that it was the statewi de policy; she opined, however, that this
was not the practice. She related that OCS had acknow edged
staff retention problens to be a barrier.

IVS. HEUER nmoved on to slide 16, "OCS Response to CRP
Reconmendati ons. " She noted that alnobst every OCS |ine worker
interviewed had expressed the need for nore support staff. She
rel ayed that OCS had acknow edged this problem and was studying
the workloads in OCS offices statew de. She stated that one
suggested solution was to reallocate jobs throughout the state
for a nore equitable casel oad. She reported that OCS was al so
studying the best ratio of support staff to social workers.

VB. HEUER spoke about slide 17 "OCS Response to CRP
Recommendati ons” and stated that the OCS response to training
for new workers was to update the training curriculum and create
a supervisor strategic plan. She expressed her encouragenent
for the OCS responses to the issues.

3:28: 24 PM

M5. HEUER, directing attention to slide 18, "CRP. This year's
report card,” stated that in prior years there had been
criticism of OCS from both comunities and CRP. She

acknowl edged that OCS had worked hard to conply wth the
requi renents of the federal Program Inprovenent Plan, reflecting
in an inprovenent of child protection policies.

M5. HEUER pointed to slide 19, "Visited Bethel & Wasilla," and
reported on the two site visits each to both Bethel and Wasill a.
She reported on the difficulties of recruitnment and retention in
Bethel, and she stated that the Wasilla office "had its own

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 5- February 10, 2011



uni que set of challenges."” She offered her belief that, as
policies were inplenented and staffs were trained, things would
change.

3:30: 59 PM

M5. HEUER addressed slide 21, "2011 CRP Recommendations,” and
stressed that OCS needed financial support to hire nore clerica
staff.

3:32: 04 PM

M5. HEUER shared slide 22, "2011 CRP Recomendations," renewed
the CRP request to standardize resources for state agencies, and
poi nted specifically to internet connections and housing as two
critical issues.

3:32: 44 PM

M5. HEUER noved to slide 23, "2011 CRP Recommendations," and
suggested an external audit of the Wasilla OCS office as a step
toward the resolution of its problens.

3:33: 37 PM
M5. HEUER concluded with slide 24, "Mst inportantly," stating

the Bethel and Wisilla staff concern that the stress and
workload did not allow for the desired |evel of child

prot ection. She opined that caseload responses were reactive,
not proactive. She offered support to the OCS requests for
staff redepl oynent. She stated: "the Wasilla office is in
crisis.”

3:35:46 PM

CHAIR KELLER expressed his appreciation for this constructive
work wi th OCS.

3:35: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked what Bethel and Wasilla specifically
needed, and if that was possible for the legislators to offer.

CHAI R KELLER asked to wait for the OCS response.

3:36:52 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 6- February 10, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT suggested that housing in rural Al aska
was a problem for nost state agencies.

M5. HEUER agreed, but pointed out that sone agencies had
housi ng, whereas OCS did not. She reflected on the savings from
not having a continual retraining due to a lack of staff
retention.
3:38:24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if this was a request for permanent
or transitional housing.

M5. HEUER replied that it was for permanent housi ng.

Ofice of Children's Services

3:39:20 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
a presentation by the Ofice of Children's Services.

CHRI STY LAWQON, Acting Director, Central Ofice, Ofice of
Children's Services, Departnment of Health and Social Services,
refl ected on the evolving relationship between OCS and the CRP
noting that it was now an effective working rel ationship. She
updated the progress of the Wstern Region, in Bethel, and
confirmed that it now had its own managenent and adm nistrative
structure. She reported that sonme of the Kkey |eadership
positions were still unfilled, but that Bethel had full staffing
for the front |ine positions. She affirnmed that OCS was wor ki ng
hard to find staff.

3:44: 21 PM

M5. LAWON expressed her disagreement with CRP regarding the
difference for child protective services in rural versus urban

ar eas. She opined that it was an equitable response, but she
recogni zed the problens for very small understaffed offices in
maki ng effective, tinmely response. She suggested that sonme of

the rural offices were not aware of all the resources avail abl e,
and that OCS was developing a better system for information
di ssen nati on

3:46: 11 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- February 10, 2011



CHAIR KELLER asked for details about the transportation
deci si ons.

M5. LAWION expl ained that a protective services report was filed
by a worker, in partnership with the regional staff. She
pointed out that staff in rural communities often arranged
directly with the transportation carriers, with paynent to be
paid at a |later date.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ SEATON  asked about t he coordi nation of
responsibility between Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSO,
Al aska State Troopers, and OCS personnel for villages wthout
OCS staff.

3:48: 08 PM

M5. LAWON explained that once an OCS staff received a report,
they contacted the local Ilaw enforcenent, VPSO, or tribal
representative in that community and, dependent on the nature of
the report, requested acconpaninent for the initial assessnent
and investigation.

3:49:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how OCS would becone involved, if
the initial report was placed with the VPSO

M5. LAWON replied that a call for concern to OCS would cone
from the VPSO the Alaska State Troopers, or a tribal
representative. | f necessary, OCS would organize the
col |l aborative effort wth the necessary agencies, including
contact with the child advocacy centers. She clarified that it
was OCS's responsibility for the necessary evaluations and
assessnents for child mal treatnent.

3:52:19 PM

M5. LAWON, responding to the CRP recomendation for nore
support staff, stated that there was agreenent to the need for
nore social service associate staff, and that a suggestion for
evaluation had been included in the strategic plan to the
supervi sors. She confirnmed her need to better understand the
equitable positioning of clerical admnistrative and social
service associate staff throughout OCS offices. She shared that
research was bei ng conducted for optimal staffing nunbers.

3:55: 07 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 8- February 10, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reflected on the difficulties encountered
wth the OCS data programming and asked if this had been
r esol ved.

M5. LAWON reported that $1 mllion had been invested in rural
area i nprovenents. She confirmed that there were still nore
del ays than for the systens with fiber optic cable connections.

3:56:49 PM

M5. LAWION, in response to Chair Keller, explained that the
pi | ot project for i ncreased internet speed and program
performance was conpleted in Bethel, but was still being
i npl enented in other rural offices. She confirmed that this was
not as effective as the fiber optic connections. She pointed

out that a program had been installed to inprove the speed and
performance for the OCS program

3:58: 40 PM

CHAI R KELLER asked about the pay range for front |ine workers
and social service associate staff. He asked if there was an
option to hire support staff w thout |icensing.

4:00: 09 PM

M5. LAWON provided that the starting pay for a frontline social
wor ker or children's service specialist was about $39, 000. She
clarified that not all social workers were |icensed; those who
have a degree in social work are required to have a social work
Iicense, but those classified as children's services specialist
are not. She responded that the scope of work for volunteers
woul d vary, but often it was difficult to find staff to orient
and supervi se the vol unteers.

4:02: 33 PM

M5. LAWQON, responding to the suggestion for inproved training,
reported that new worker training had been increased from two
weeks to four weeks. She shared that there were many ideas for
nore speci alized continued professional devel opnent training.

4:04: 04 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - O- February 10, 2011



M5. LAWON confirmed that OCS was continuing its efforts for
staff retention, which would alleviate nmuch of the work | oad
i ssues.

M5. LAWON, in response to Representative Mllett, said that
there were 215 Level 1 or 2 social workers, and 6 Level 3
facilitators. She replied that the average retention was 18
nont hs.

4:06:49 PM

M5. LAWION agreed with an earlier statenment that the OCS Wasilla
office had many conplex issues and chall enges. She reported
that a case by case evaluation to review procedures, and
exam nation of the supervisory and nmanagenent |evels, were top
priorities for creating a healthy, productive, effective working
environnent. She pointed to the rapid increase of case |loads in
Wasilla, wthout the corresponding increase in resources, as a
pr obl em

CHAI R KELLER asked how the Wasilla OCS casel oad conpared to the
ot her offices in Al aska.

M5. LAWION replied that the significantly higher caseloads in
Wasilla did not allow workers the tine to make a proper
eval uati on.

4:11:54 PM

CHAI R KELLER pointed to previous audits of OCS, and opined that
these had not resulted in a justifiable use of those resources
necessary to do the audit, as the tendency was to find fault
rat her than sol utions.

M5. LAWON endorsed a multi faceted approach for a strategic
plan to inplenment the review process, and that there was a
search for the correct nethodol ogy. She affirnmed that the
Wasilla famly to famly project had not received the necessary
nurturing.

4:15:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked what the Alaska State Legislature
could do for nore effective, efficient change.

M5. LAWON replied that once the problens were identified, nost
of the work could be acconplished within OCS

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -10- February 10, 2011



4:17:05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER suggested that nore rural housing would
hel p.

M5. LAWION replied that housing would help with retention. She
asked for support to increase the public perception of the value
for OCS staff.

4:18: 24 PM

M5. LAWIQN, in response to Representative Seaton, explained that
TDM team decision making neetings, were facilitated by OCS
staff nmenbers and included the parents, the child, famly
menbers, the OCS worker, and support people during discussions
for maki ng a placenent change for the child.

4:19: 38 PM

CHAI R KELLER offered his belief that engagenent of the comrunity
was the answer to nmany of these problens. He decl ared that
policy decisions should not reflect that the state would
i mredi atel y becone a surrogate parent.

Al aska Children's Alliance

CHAI R KELLER announced that the final order of business would be
a presentation by the Al aska Children's Alliance.

PAM KARALUNAS, Chapter Coordinator, Al aska Children's Alliance
i ntroduced the other attending nenbers, and asked the conmmttee
for ongoi ng support for child advocacy centers (CAC).

4:23:20 PM

VB. KARALUNAS presented a Power Point, "Alaska Children's
Al liance Update on CACs 2011." [Included in nenbers' packets]
She directed attention to slide 2, "Alaska Children's Alliance,"
which stated that the group's mssion was to "pronote a
culturally appropriate multidisciplinary response to child
mal t reat ment throughout Al aska." She noved on to talk about
slide 3, "National Children's Alliance,"” which set standards for
CACs, and provided support, training, technical assistance, and

accreditation. She tal ked about the history of the Children's
Alliance in Huntsville, Alabama. She presented slide 4, "Al aska
Children's Alliance provides:" and stated that ACA provided

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- February 10, 2011



techni cal assistance and support, and offered linmted funding
through national grants. She spoke about the statew de
projects, slide 5, which included the TeleCam nedical peer
review, the biennial Alaska Child Mltreatnent Conference, the
forensic phot ography  trai ning, and the statewide data
col | ecti on.

4:25:23 PM

M5. KARALUNAS directed attention to slide 6, and spoke about the
Al aska specific projects, which included: training for triba
entities for regional CACs, developnment of satellite CACs, and
training for effective support vol unteers.

M5. KARALUNAS reported that there were ten CACs, slide 7.

BRI AN  MESSI NG Program Manager, Sout heast Al aska Famly
Evaluation Child Advocacy Center, Alaska Children's Alliance,
clarified that the CACs worked together, and he spoke about the
i ndi vidual CACs: slide 8, Anchorage; slide 9, Bethel; slide 10,
Copper River Basin; and slide 11, Dillingham

M5. KARALUNAS, in reference to the Copper River Basin CAC, said
that OCS and public safety were both | ocated nearby.

4:30: 25 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DI CK asked about the CAC fundi ng.

M5. KARALUNAS replied that Senator Stevens had directed federa
funding to the nodel, and that funding for the last two years
had cone entirely fromthe state.

REPRESENTATIVE DICK asked the tine sensitivity for an
evaluation, if there was to be prosecution.

M5. KARALUNAS replied that child sexual abuse generally went on
for a very long tinme, often without any forensic evidence. She
offered her belief that forensic evidence was nost obtainable
for 72 hours.

4:33:10 PM
JESSI CA LAWWASTER, Program Manager, Haven House, Kenai Peninsul a
Alaska Children's Alliance, explained that quicker was better

for the forensic interview She pointed out that the need for
safety was nore unique in rural conmunities.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- February 10, 2011



MR. MESSI NG noted that all the CACs were regional. He presented
slide 12, Fai r banks; slide 13, Juneau:; slide 14, Kena
Peni nsul a; slide 15, Kodiak; slide 16, WMut-Su; and slide 17,
None.

M5. LAWASTER |isted the core conmponents of CACs, which
included: slide 18, "A child and famly friendly environnent for

coordination of investigative process;" slide 19, "A child
forensic interview should be <conducted at a CAC.. by
interviewers who have specialized training;" slide 20, "The

mul tidisciplinary response investigation reduces duplicative
interviews, so basically this response, instead of trying to fit
children into the adult system.. brings all of the different
professionals to that child;" slide 21, "The specialized non-
traumatic nedical exam.. so a child can get a head to toe exam
or a well child check exam..it mght be inportant for that
child to hear from a nedical professional that his or her body
is okay, regardless of what happened to them" slide 22, "On-
goi ng support and follow up for the famly throughout the system
process;" slide 23, "Culturally conpetent services... Bethel
actually has forensic interviewers that are bilingual that can
conduct forensic interviews in English and in Yupik;" and slide
24, "CACs provide collaboration with nental health services for
earlier response to referrals.”

4:42: 38 PM

M5. LAWASTER di scussed slide 25, "Case Review " and stated that
all the centers had nonthly child abuse case reviews, which
enhanced the process and allowed for efficient sharing of
i nformation. She explained slide 26, "Case Tracking," and
reported that all the CACs used a conprehensive national data
base case tracking system through the National Children's
Al li ance. She stated that CACs provided "community awareness,
education, and outreach, so we are constantly out in our
conmuni ties,"” slide 27

4:44: 54 PM

M5. KARALUNAS pointed to slide 28, and established that child
sexual abuse was significantly linked to an increased risk for
suicide attenpts, depression, illicit drug use, and other
"things that kill us as adults.” She noved on to slide 29, "Dd
you know?" which estimted the annual cost of child abuse to be
$103.8 billion. She presented slide 30, "Wy the CAC Mdel ?"
and stated that prior to the CAC, the system would further

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -13- February 10, 2011



traumati ze the child and the famly. She stated, slide 31, that
it now cost less per case, and it took less tine to prosecute
cases. She reviewed slide 32, "Qur Children Deserve Nothing
Less!" and nentioned that this child friendly, collaborative,
supportive environnent mnade sense. She offered slide 33 and
stated that 35 percent of the children seen at Al aska CACs were
boys, and that 65 percent were girls.

4:48: 26 PM

MS. KARALUNAS directed attention to slide 35, "Numbers of
children served,"” and offered additional information to anyone
interested in the nunbers in their area.

4:50: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK asked if the location of the CACs within the
comunity was critical

M5. KARALUNAS replied that it needed to be easily accessible,
but in a subdued, |ess obvious setting.

REPRESENTATI VE DICK offered his belief that the best |ocation
was next to a clinic.

M5. KARALUNAS, in response to Representative Dick, said that the
Copper River Basin CAC was nore isol ated.

4:53:34 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 4:53 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- February 10, 2011



